
 

Newnan City Council Meeting  
April 23, 2019 – 6:30 P.M. 

 

  A G E N D A 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER – Mayor Keith Brady    
 
 
INVOCATION 
 
 
READING OF MINUTES 
 
 

I Minutes from Regular Meeting on April 9, 2019 ....................................................................... Tab A 
 
 
REPORTS OF BOARDS AND COMMISSION 

 
 
I 1 Appointment – Keep Newnan Beautiful – 3 Year Terms  
 
 
II 4 Appointments – Newnan Youth Activities Commission – 3 Year Terms 
 
 
III 3 Appointments – Urban Redevelopment Agency – 3 Year Terms 
 
 
IV Resignation – Leah Wylie – Keep Newnan Beautiful Commission .......................................... Tab B 
 
    

SPECIAL RECOGNITION  
 
 
I Newnan Youth Council – Graduating Seniors 

 
 
REPORTS ON OPERATIONS BY CITY MANAGER 

 
 
I Pinning/Promotion to Lieutenant:  Sgt. Phil Hines 
 
 

REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM MAYOR 
 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
 

I Consider lease agreement with Little Peoples Learning Center for a portion of the 
Verona Rosser on Pinson Street .............................................................................................. Tab C 

 
 
II Consider Intergovernmental Agreement between Coweta County, the Coweta 

County Board of Elections and Registration and the City of Newnan relating to 
Election Services ...................................................................................................................... Tab D 

 
 



NEWNAN CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA – April 23, 2019 @ 6:30 P.M. ................................ Page 2 
 
III Consider a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) between the City of Newnan 

and the PATH Foundation, Inc., for LINC Segment C ............................................................. Tab E 
 
 
IV Information Only – Rezoning request by Walter Drake for 1.23+ acres located off 

Ellis and Fair Streets from Heavy Commercial District (CHV) and Urban 
Neighborhood Commercial District (CUN) to Urban Residential Dwelling District-
Historical and Infill (RU-I) – Planning Commission .................................................................. Tab F 

 
 
V Findings for consideration of applying for a Community Development Block Grant 

for FY 2020 ............................................................................................................................... Tab G 
 
 
VI Discussion of Council initiated rezoning of City owned lots ..................................................... Tab H 
 
 
VII Consider acceptance of 9.66 acres from REO Funding Solutions III, LLC for 

future use as a City Park ........................................................................................................... Tab I 
 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
 
I Public Hearing – Request by Dennis Drewyer on behalf of Ascension QOF 

Partners, LLP, to change the zoning on 24.47+ acres located on McIntosh 
Parkway from Urban Residential Single-Family Dwelling District (RU-7) to Mixed 
Use Development District (MXD)............................................................................................... Tab J 

 

 Ordinance to amend the zoning map for property located on McIntosh 
Parkway, Containing 24.47+ acres in the Land Lots 23 and 42, of the Fifth 
Land District in the City of Newnan 

 
 
II Public Hearing – Request by Dennis Drewyer on behalf of Cathryn and William 

Sullivan to annex 30.78+ acres located at 950 North Highway 29 into the city 
limits and zoning of RS-15 Suburban Residential Single Family Dwelling District-
Medium Density to accommodate a future 40 lot residential subdivision ................................ Tab K 

 

 Annexation Ordinance to annex 30.78+ acres into the City 
 

 Ordinance to Amend Zoning Map to zone 30.78+ acres RS-15 
 
 
III Public Hearing – 11 Melson Street – Resolution to Repair or Demolish ................................ Tab L 
 
 
IV Public Hearing – 15 Elm Circle – Resolution to Repair or Demolish ..................................... Tab M 
 

 
VISITORS, PETITIONS, COMMUNICATIONS & COMPLAINTS 
 
 

I Foundation Christian Church request to use Greenville Street Park on Tuesdays 
during June on the 2nd, 9th, 16th and 23rd from 5 pm to 9 pm for Middle and high 
School Summer Community Events ......................................................................................... Tab N 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – LEGAL, PERSONNEL AND REAL ESTATE 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 













CITY COUNCIL MEETING APRIL 23, 2019 
 

RESIGNATION FROM KEEP NEWNAN BEAUTIFUL 
 
From: Leah Wylie 
Sent: Thursday, April 11, 2019 9:59 AM 
To: Page Beckwith 
Subject: Resignation 

 

Good morning Page, 

 

I reaching out to let you know that I have been struggling with some medical issues for quite 

some time now.  While these issues are not life threatening, they are serious and do require 

change and modifications with medication that will impact my ability to continue volunteer 

services with Keep Newnan Beautiful.  I want to thank you for all that you do for our 

community.  It has been an honor serving with you, and I'm disappointed to leave.  I wish you 

and the team all the best. 

 

Warmest regards, 

 

Leah Wylie-Brown 

 



 
City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
Date: April 23, 2019  
 
 
Agenda Item:  Lease Agreement with Little Peoples Learning Center for a 

portion of the Verona Rosser Center located on Pinson 
Street as they are currently utilizing for their child care 
program 

 
 
Prepared by:  Cleatus Phillips 
  

 
 

Purpose:   Request approval for the City of Newnan to enter into agreement with Little 
Peoples Learning Center for a portion of the Verona Rosser Center 

 
 
Background: Brenda Clark-The Little People’s Learning Center, a non-profit corporation, has 

been utilizing a portion of the Verona Rosser for child care use for many years 
and would like to continue to do so.  It is in the best interest of both parties to 
have in place a lease agreement with appropriate terms and conditions. 

 
    
Funding: N/A 
 
 
 
Recommendation: Approve agreement   
  
 

Previous Discussion with Council:  N/A     
 



         DRAFT #1 

 

1 | P a g e  

 

LEASE AGREEMENT 

Georgia, Coweta County. 

 This Lease Agreement is made and entered into the _____ day of 

_______________, 2019 by and between the CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA, a municipal 

corporation of Coweta County, Georgia, whose address is City Hall, 25 LaGrange Street, 

Newnan, Georgia 30263, (hereinafter referred to as “Lessor”), and LITTLE PEOPLES 

LEARNING CENTER., a nonprofit corporation organized and existing under the laws of 

the state of Georgia (hereinafter referred to as “Lessee”). 

WITNESSETH: 

 THAT FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual covenants herein contained, 

and the rents to be paid as hereinafter provided for, the Lessor does hereby demise 

and lease to lessee for such uses and purposes as may be consistent with the 

provisions of this lease, that certain premises located within a building known as The 

Verona Rosser Center in the City of Newnan, Coweta County, Georgia, and located on 

property more particularly described as: a portion of the Verona Rosser Center located 

on Pinson Street, Newnan, Coweta County, Georgia Tax Map No. N13006001 Coweta 

County Assessors Maps. 

 This Lease shall be subject to the terms and conditions as hereinafter set forth: 



         DRAFT #1 

 

2 | P a g e  

 

1. TERM. 

The initial term of this Lease shall commence on the _____ day of ________________, 

2019 and extend through _______________ ___, ____.  At the option and in the 

discretion of Lessor, Lessee shall have the opportunity to renew the terms of this lease 

for up to three successive one (1) year periods.  Lessee shall notify Lessor, in writing, of 

its intent to renew at lease sixty (60) days prior to the then expiring term.  Lessor’s 

consent to said election shall be required for each of the proposed one (1) year terms. 

2. RENTAL 

Lessee shall pay to Lessor, at 25 Lagrange Street, Newnan, GA 30263, or at such other 

place as Lessor may designate, rental in the amount of One Dollar ($1.00) per year, or 

any portion thereof. 

3. UTILITIES 

Lessee shall pay all water, sewer, sewer service, gas, electricity, fuel, light, heat, power, 

internet, telephone, and garbage service bills for the premises throughout the term of 

this Lease.  Lessee shall be responsible for providing such utilities throughout the term 

of this Lease. 

4. USE OF PREMISES 

Lessee shall use the demised premises in connection with the operation of the Lessee’s 

children’s day care program for disadvantaged youth based upon the Lessee’s 



         DRAFT #1 

 

3 | P a g e  

 

certification or permit from the State of Georgia.  Lessee shall not be permitted to use 

the premise for any illegal purposes; nor in any manner to create any nuisance or 

trespass; nor in any manner to vitiate the insurance or increase the rate of insurance 

on the premises. 

5. ABANDONMENT OF PREMISES  

Lessee shall not abandon or vacate the premises during any term of this Lease. 

6. PREMISES LEASED AS IS 

Lessee understands and agrees that the premises will be leased “AS IS” and lessee has 

inspected the premises before this Lease is signed and understands the present 

condition of the premises and facilities.  Occupancy of the premises by Lessee shall 

indicate acceptance of the premises in their existing condition. 

7. REPAIRS AND ALTERATIONS TO PREMISES 

(a) Lessor covenants and agrees to be responsible for all maintenance and repairs 

to the roof and structural walls of the premises, including the foundation. 

(b)   Lessee, at its expense, will be responsible for all repairs to the existing 

electrical, plumbing and heating and air conditioning components or systems 

and all improvements which have been made by Lessee or added by Lessee.   



         DRAFT #1 

 

4 | P a g e  

 

(c) Lessee, at its expense, will keep the interior of the demised premises in a good 

repair, reasonable wear and tear excepted.   

(d) Lessee will replace any and all broken glass in said demised premises at its 

expense.  Lessee, at its expense, will be responsible for all janitorial services, 

maintenance and repairs to the floors and all painting. 

(e) Lessee, at its expense, will make all arrangements with any other Lessee in the 

Premises for use and maintenance of the playground and basketball court. 

(f) Any signage Lessee may want at the premises must be permitted by the City 

and meet the requirements of the City’s Sign ordinance. 

(g) Lessee shall not make any alterations to the premises which would change the 

external or internal appearance of the premises without first obtaining the 

written consent of Lessor.  Such alterations as may be requested by Lessee and 

approved by Lessor shall be the responsibility of Lessee, and Lessor shall in no 

way be responsible for the same. 

8. TAXES AND INSURANCE 

(a) Lessee shall be responsible for paying all ad valorem taxes which may be 

imposed on items of inventory or personal property or equipment which may 

be maintained on the property by Lessee. 



         DRAFT #1 

 

5 | P a g e  

 

(b) Lessee shall be responsible for insuring the contents of the premises for its own 

benefit, and Lessee shall make to claim against Lessor for any such damage. 

(c) Additionally, Lessee shall carry general public liability insurance covering 

activities on the premises with policy limits of not less than 

$_________________ basic liability with $________________ umbrella 

liability.  This policy of insurance shall be issued by an insurance carrier 

acceptable to Lessor, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld and 

the policy shall designate Lessor as an additional insured. 

9. INDEMNITY 

Lessee agrees to indemnity and hold Lessor harmless against any and all claims for 

damages to persons or property by reason of the use or occupancy of the leased 

premises, and all expenses incurred by Lessor because thereof, including, but not 

limited to, reasonable attorney fees and court costs. 

10. DESTRUCTION OF OR DAMAGE TO PREMISES 

If the premises are totally or substantially destroyed by storm, fire, lightning, 

earthquake or other casualty, either party shall have the option to declare this Lease 

to be null and void as of the date of such destruction.  In the event that the premises 

are damaged, but not substantially destroyed by any such casualties, rental shall abate 

in such proportion as the use of the premises has been destroyed, and, if Lessor deems 



         DRAFT #1 

 

6 | P a g e  

 

it to be economically prudent, Lessor may restore the premises to substantially the 

same condition as before the damage was incurred as speedily as practicable, 

whereupon full rental shall recommence. 

11. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING 

Lessee, without the prior written consent of Lessor endorsed hereon, shall not be 

permitted to assign this Lease or any interest hereunder, or sublet the premises or any 

part thereof.  In the event that Lessor should approve an assignment or sub-lease, such 

approval shall not affect the responsibility of Lessee or relieve Lessee from any liability 

under the terms of this Lease. 

12. WAIVER OF LIABILITY 

Lessor shall not be liable to Lessee for any damage or injury to lessee or lessee’s 

property occasioned by the failure of Lessor to keep said premises in repair, and shall 

not be liable for any injury done or occasioned by wind or by or from any defect of 

plumbing , electrical wiring, or of insulation thereof, gas pipes, water pipes, or from 

broken steps or walks, or from backing up of any sewer pipe or downspout, or from 

the bursting or leaking of any tank, wash stand, water closet or waste pipe, drain or 

any other pipe or tank in, upon or about the building or premises, nor for any damage 

or injury occasioned by water being upon or coming through the roof or any other 

place upon or near said premises, or otherwise, nor for any such damage or injury 

done or injury arising from the act, omission or contiguous property or of owners of 



         DRAFT #1 

 

7 | P a g e  

 

adjacent or contiguous pro0erty, all claims for nay such damage or injury being hereby 

expressly waived by Lessee. 

13. DEFAULT AND CANCELLATION OF LEASE BY LESSOR 

It is mutually agreed, that, if lessee shall be in default in performing any of the 

terms or provisions of this Lease and fails to cure such default within thirty (30) days 

after the date of receipt of written notice of default from Lessor, or if Lessee is 

adjudicated bankrupt; or if a permanent receiver is appointed for Lessee’s property 

and such receiver is not removed within sixty (60) days after written notice from 

Lessor to Lessee to obtain such removal; or, if whether voluntarily or involuntarily, 

lessee takes advantage of any debtor relief proceeding under any present or future 

law, whereby the rent or any part thereof, is, or is proposed to be, reduced or 

payment thereof deferred; or if lessee’s effects should be levied upon or attached 

under process against Lessee; then, in any of said event, Lessor at its option may at 

once, or at any time thereafter (but only during continuance of such default or 

condition) terminate the Lease.  Any notice provided for in this Paragraph may be 

given by Lessor, and when so given, Lessee if default has not been cured in accordance 

herewith, will at once surrender possession of the premises to Lessor and remove all 

of lessee’s effects in which Lessor claims no interest under this Lease.  In such event, 

Lessor shall have the right forthwith to re-enter the premises and repossess itself 



         DRAFT #1 

 

8 | P a g e  

 

thereof, and remove all persons and effects there from, using such force as may be 

necessary without being guilty of trespass, forcible entry, detainer or other tort. 

14. NO ESTATE IN LAND 

This Lease shall create the relationship or Lessor and lessee between the parties 

thereto; no estate shall pass out of Lessor.  Lessee has only a usufruct, not subject to 

levy, and assignable only as provided for above. 

15. HOLDING OVER 

If Lessee remains in possession of premises after expiration of the terms hereof, 

with Lessor’s acquiescence and without any express agreement of the parties, Lessee 

shall be a tenant-holding over at the rental rate in effect at the end of the lease; and 

there shall be no renewal of this Lease by operation of law. 

16. SERVICE OF NOTICE 

Lessee hereby appoints as Lessee’s agent to receive service of all dispossessory or 

other legal proceedings and notice hereunder, and all notices required under this 

Lease, the person in charge of the premises or occupying the premises at the time 

delivery or service of such notice. 



         DRAFT #1 

 

9 | P a g e  

 

 

17. MISCELLANEOUS 

All rights, powers and privileges conferred hereunder upon the parties hereto shall 

be cumulative but not restrictive of those given by law.  No failure of Lessor to exercise 

any power hereunder, or to insist upon strict compliance by lessee, and no custom or 

practice of parties at variance with the terms hereof shall constitute a waiver of 

Lessor’s right to demand exact compliance with the terms hereof.  “Lessee” shall 

include Lessee, its heirs, executors, administrators, representatives, and, if this Lease 

by validly assigned or sublet, shall also include Lessee’s assignees, or sub-lessees, as to 

the premises covered by such assignment or sublease. 

18. RETURN OF THE PREMISES 

Upon termination or expiration of the term of this Lease, Lessee shall return the 

premises to Lessor in substantially the same condition, natural wear and tear 

excepted. 

19. QUITE ENJOYMENT 

In the event that Lessee pays the rent as provided for herein and otherwise 

performs all of the covenants and conditions to the performed by the Lessee, lessee 

shall have peaceful and quiet enjoyment of all the demised premises for the duration 

of the original term of and any renewal term of this Lease. 



         DRAFT #1 

 

10 | P a g e  

 

20.  ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

This Lease contains the entire agreement of the parties hereto and no 

representations, inducements, promises or agreement, or otherwise, between the 

parties not embodied herein, shall be of any force or effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties herein have hereunto set their hands and seals 

or caused this instrument to be executed through authorized officials in their name, in 

duplicate, the day and year first above written. 

Signed, sealed and delivered 
this ___ day of ____________, 
2019, in the presence of: 
 
 
 

Unofficial Witness 
 
 
 

Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 
 
 
Signed sealed and delivered 
This ____day of ______________ 
2019 in the presence of: 
 
 

Unofficial Witness 
 
 
 

Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 
 
 

LESSOR: 
CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA (SEAL) 
 
By:  Mayor 
 
 

L. Keith Brady 
 
 
 

Attest – Clerk 
 
 
 

LESSEE: 
LITTLE PEOPLES LEARNING CENTER 
 
 
By: 

   
 
 
Attest: 

 
 
Address for Notice: 
 

 



 
City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
Date: April 23, 2019  
 
 
Agenda Item:  Intergovernmental Agreement between Coweta County, 

Georgia, the Coweta County Board of Elections and 
Registration and the City of Newnan, Georgia, Relating to 
Elections services 

 
 
Prepared by:  Cleatus Phillips 
  

 
 

Purpose:   Approval for the City of Newnan to enter into agreement with Coweta County 
Board of Commissioners and the Coweta County Board of Elections and 
Registration to properly conduct municipal elections   

 
 
Background: In 2017, the Coweta County Board of Elections and the Coweta County Board of 

Registrars were dissolved and a single board created:  The Coweta County 
Board of Elections and Registration.  The City of Newnan and the previous two 
Coweta County boards were under agreement for election services which 
expired December 2017.  2018 was not an election year, however there was the 
need for a special election which took place in November 2018.  Therefore, the 
new Intergovernmental Agreement has a commencement date of January 1, 
2018 with automatic renewals for 49 successive years unless properly terminated 
by either party 

    
Funding: N/A 
 
 
Recommendation: Approve agreement   
  
 

Previous Discussion with Council:  N/A     
 



1 

 

STATE OF GEORGIA 

COUNTY OF COWETA 

 

 

 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN COWETA COUNTY, 

GEORGIA, THE COWETA COUNTY BOARD OF ELECTIONS AND 

REGISTRATION AND THE CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA, RELATING TO 

ELECTIONS SERVICES 

 

WHEREAS,  the Georgia General Assembly created the Coweta County Board 

of Elections  having jurisdiction over the conduct of primaries and elections;  

 

WHEREAS, in 2017, the Georgia General Assembly dissolved the Coweta 

County Board of Elections and the Coweta County Board of Registrars and created a 

single board, the Coweta County Board of Elections and Registration (hereinafter 

“Board”) having jurisdiction over the conduct of primaries and elections; 

 

WHEREAS, the City has requested that the Coweta County Board of 

Commissioners (hereinafter “County”) and the Board enter into an Agreement with the 

City of Newnan, Georgia, (hereinafter “City”), for providing the services of the Board of 

Elections and Registration to properly conduct municipal elections pursuant to the 

applicable laws of the State of Georgia; 

 

WHEREAS, the corporate limits of the City of Newnan are located within 

Coweta County; 

 

WHEREAS, the City is required to conduct municipal elections from time to 

time for the purposes of electing individuals to serve on the City Council of said City, as 

Mayor of said City, special referenda, bond issues, or called special elections, and the 

Board is authorized to provide services to the City under O.C.G.A. § 21-2-40 (b); 

 

WHEREAS, O.C.G.A. § 21-2-45 (c) authorizes the governing authority of any 

municipality of the County within which that municipality wholly or partially lies to 

conduct any or all elections; 

 

WHEREAS, in consideration of the mutual benefits and consideration accruing 

to each of the parties hereto and for the use of and benefit of the citizens of the entire 

County, which benefits are hereby expressly acknowledged, and has determined that it is 

in the best interests of the citizens of the City of  to enter into an Agreement with the 

County and the Board, as authorized by Art. IX, Sec. III, Para. I, of the Constitution of 

the State of Georgia, for the following purposes; and  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto mutually agree as follows: 

 



2 

 

Section 1.  Representations of the Parties.  Each party hereto makes the 

following representations and warranties, which are specifically relied upon by all of the 

other parties as a basis for entering into this Agreement: 

 

(a) The City is a municipal corporation as defined by statutory law and 

judicial interpretation that has validly adopted a resolution to 

authorize the entity to enter into this Agreement at a public meeting 

pursuant to the Open Meetings Act, O.C.G.A. § 50-14-1 et seq.; and 

 

(b) The County and the Board have validly adopted a resolution to 

authorize the County and the Board to enter into this Agreement at a 

public meeting pursuant to the Open Meetings Act, O.C.G.A § 50-14-

1 et seq. 

 

Section 2.  Term of Agreement.  The term of this Agreement shall commence on 

the 1st day of January, 2018, and shall terminate on December 31, 2018.  This Agreement 

shall automatically renew for forty-nine (49) successive annual terms, unless terminated 

as outlined in Section 3.   

 

Section 3.  Termination.  This Agreement may be terminated at any time, with or 

without cause, by either party upon one hundred and eighty (180) days written notice.  If 

notice to terminate is given, the Board will continue to provide the contracted services to 

the City through the one hundred and eighty (180) day period. 

 

Section 4.  Prerequisites to Performance.  The City shall adopt an ordinance 

authorizing the Board to conduct elections, and the City may request the Board to 

perform any of the following: 

 

(a) Perform all duties as Superintendent of Elections as specified under 

Chapter 2 of Title 21 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated; or 

 

(b) Perform all duties as Superintendent of Elections as specified under 

Chapter 2 of Title 21 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, with 

the exception of the qualification of candidates.  

 

Section 5.  Scope of Services.  After adopting the appropriate ordinances set forth 

in Section 4, the Board acting as the Superintendent of Elections directly or through its 

Elections Supervisor shall provide any and all services required to conduct, manage, and 

supervise all municipal elections for the City in accordance with all applicable state and 

local laws, including the following services: 

 

(a) Receiving and acting upon petitions, determining the sufficiency of 

nomination petitions of candidates, filing notice of their candidacy in 

accordance with state law, preparing and publishing all notices and 

advertisements relating to the conducting of elections, selecting and equipping 

polling places, securing and maintaining election equipment, appointing poll 



3 

 

officers to serve in primaries and elections, ensuring compliance with the 

State Election Board rules and general laws, instructing poll officers in their 

duties, receiving poll returns, certifying and announcing the results, and 

guaranteeing the secrecy of the ballot; 

 

(b) At a mutually agreed upon time, calling for an election, to be held in all 

applicable voting precincts in the City; 

 

(c) Setting the date of such election as provided by law, opening the polls of each 

election district of the City at 7:00 a.m. and closing at 7:00 p.m., insuring that 

the election is held in accordance with the election laws of the State of 

Georgia, and counting the votes of said election in the manner required by 

law; 

 

(d) Publishing the Notice of Election as authorized by law, and prior to the date of 

any election, appointing a proper Election Manager and Clerks to supervise 

and hold the municipal election;  

 

(e) In the event that a special unscheduled election is necessary, conferring with 

the City and reaching a mutually convenient date to conduct said election; 

 

(f) Providing for absentee ballots and designating the location to vote absentee; 

and 

 

(g) Performing any other duties required for the conduction of a municipal 

election as required by Georgia law. 

 

Section 6.  Compensation.  The City shall reimburse the County all costs 

incurred in performing those functions which the municipality has requested the Board to 

perform, including, but not limited to, any and all usual, standard costs incurred by the 

County and the Board during a given election other than when the election is conducted 

on the same day as a County election, for example:  the cost of poll workers, the printing 

of ballots, and the publishing of legal notices.   

 

(a)  In the event the County and the City conduct an election on the same date, the 

City shall be responsible for costs incurred over and above the costs incurred 

to conduct that county election, unless otherwise agreed to by the parties. 

 

(b) Within ninety (90) days after the date of the election or any run-off election 

related thereto, whichever is last to occur, the County shall furnish the City 

with a complete statement showing all costs and expenses incurred from the 

election(s).  The City shall remit reimbursement for all expenses and costs in 

connection with the election to the County within thirty (30) days after receipt 

of the invoice that provides said expenses and costs. 

 

 



4 

 

 

Furthermore, in addition to these costs, the City shall pay the County a fee of $100 per 

election conducted as further consideration for the performance of said services. 

 

Section 7.  Indemnity.  The City shall indemnify and hold the County, the Board, 

and the Elections Supervisor and their respective employees, agents and assigns harmless 

from any and all claims made concerning or resulting from any election conducted 

pursuant to the terms of this Agreement including, but not limited to, all claims made 

contesting any aspect of a given election, except claims alleging the intentional or willful 

acts of agents or employees of the County or the Board in connection with any election 

held pursuant to this Agreement. 

 

(a) All legal services and defenses of litigation required by the Board or 

the County or one acting on behalf of the Board or County, arising 

from the municipal election held pursuant to this contract shall be 

furnished by the County Attorney unless the Board and City agree that 

the City Attorney shall provide the required legal services.  The 

expenses for any legal services provided referred to in this paragraph 

shall be borne by the City.   

 

Section 8.  Modification.  The parties may modify this Agreement in writing by 

having a modification signed by all parties and adopted by resolution pursuant to the 

Open Meetings Act, O.C.G.A. 50-14-1 et seq. 

 

Section 9.  Entire Agreement.  This intergovernmental contract is a full and 

complete statement of the agreement of the parties as to the subject matter hereof and has 

been authorized by proper action of the respective parties. 

 

Section 10.  Jurisdiction.  The parties hereby agree to the jurisdiction and venue 

of the Coweta County Superior Court. 

 

Section 11.  Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in several 

counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which together shall 

constitute the same instrument. 

 

Section 12.  Governing Law.  This Agreement and all transactions contemplated 

hereby, shall be governed by, construed and enforced according to the laws of the State 

of Georgia. 

 

Section 13.  Severability.  Should any provision of this Agreement or application 

thereof to any person or circumstance be held invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of 

this Agreement, or the application of such provision, to any person or circumstance, other 

than those to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby, and 

each provision of this Agreement shall be valid and enforceable to the full extent 

permitted by law. 

 



5 

 

Section 14.  Notices.  All notices, demands, or requests required or permitted to 

be given pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been 

properly given or served and shall be effective on being deposited in the United States 

mail, postage prepaid and registered, or certified with return receipt requested to the 

addresses appearing on the executed page hereof, or when delivered by hand to the 

addresses shown below.  

 

(a)  Coweta County – Chairman, Coweta County Board of Commissioners, 22 

East Broad Street, Newnan, Georgia  30263. 

 

(b) City of Newnan – Mayor, City of Newnan, 25 LaGrange Street, Newnan, 

Georgia 30265.  

 

(c) Board of Elections and Registration and Elections Supervisor – Elections, 22 

East Broad Street, Newnan, Georgia 30263. 

 

All notices shall be sent to the successors in office to any of the foregoing. 

 

SO AGREED this ____ day of _________________, 2019. 

 

 

 

 

      COWETA COUNTY, GEORGIA 

 

      By:_________________________________ 

Chairman 

         

 

ATTEST: ___________________________ 

Clerk 

         [SEAL] 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 



6 

 

 

BOARD OF ELECTIONS AND REGISTRATIOIN 

      OF COWETA COUNTY, GEORGIA 

 

 

     By:______________________________________ 

Chairman  

 

         [SEAL] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



7 

 

 

      CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 

      Acting by and through the Mayor 

      And Council 

 

 

      By:_______________________________ 

       L. Keith Brady, Mayor 

 

      ATTEST:_________________________ 

       Della Hill, Clerk 

          

         [SEAL]  

   

 

 
 



City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
Date: April 16, 2019   
 
Agenda Item:  Consideration of Professional Services Agreement between 
the City of Newnan and the PATH Foundation for LINC Segment C 
 
Prepared and Presented by:   Hasco Craver, Assistant City Manager 

 
 

Purpose: Newnan City Council may consider a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) 
between the City of Newnan and the PATH Foundation, Inc. for LINC Segment C. 
 

Background:  Newnan City Council, at the March 26, 2019 City Council Retreat, while 
discussing future and potential public parks and recreation facilities, considered the design and 
construction of LINC Segment C (segment illustration may be found in the attached document).   
 
Previously, the Newnan City Council considered and entered into a Professional Services 
Agreement with the PATH Foundation to provide design services for the implementation of the 
LINC Sections A, B, D, as well as the now-completed LINC Section at Summergrove/Newnan 
Centre.   
 
The City of Newnan, in concert with the PATH Foundation and Kaizen Collaborative, is currently 
designing LINC Sections A, B, and D, which connects facilities from the current terminus point 
along Newnan Crossing Boulevard across Interstate 85 to a point near One Life Fitness at 
Ashley Park.  Thereafter, the facility continues from a point near the recently completed round-
a-bout along Grieson Trail west through CJ Smith Park to the Historic Train Depot in downtown 
Newnan. 
 
The Professional Services Agreement includes the following scope of services: 

 Surveying Services  

 Design Development 

 Construction Documents (Civil, Structural, Geotechnical) 

 Permit Coordination 

 Bid Assistance 

 Contract Administration  
 
LINC Segment C PSA Total Cost - $189,300.00 
 
Funding: SPLOST 2019 
 
Please note that City of Newnan has allocated $7M in SPLOST 2019 for LINC Sections A, B,  
and D; City staff recommends the allocation of additional SPLOST 2019 proceeds from the 
Park and Leisure Services Facilities project list as the source of funding for LINC Section C.   
Upon completion of design activities, City Staff will prepare and present a total project budget  
for Newnan City Council consideration. 
 
Recommendation: Newnan City Council may authorize the execution of the Professional Services 
Agreement as presented. 
 
Attachments:  

1. Professional Services Agreement between the City of Newnan and the PATH 
Foundation, Inc. for LINC Segments C 

        



Previous Discussions with Council: Newnan City Council began discussing items related to 
the Newnan LINC at the 2017 City Council Retreat.  Over time, Newnan City Council has had 
numerous discussions related to the planning, funding and construction of the LINC. 























City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council

Date: April 23, 2019

Agenda Item:  Rezoning Request RZ2019-04, Walter Drake for 1.23 ±
acres located off Ellis and Fair Streets (Tax Parcel #s N23
0001 005, N23 0001 004, N23 0002 003, N23 0002 005,
N23 0005 004, N23 0005 003)

Prepared and Presented by:  Tracy S. Dunnavant, Planning Director

Purpose:     To inform the City Council that RZ2019-04 is before the Planning Commission for
consideration and a recommendation on the requested zoning classification.

Background: Walter Drake has submitted an application for the rezoning of 1.23 ± acres
located at 65, 66, 69, and 70 Fair Street and 5, 8 and 9 Ellis Street. The request is to rezone
the properties from CHV (Heavy Commercial District) and CUN (Urban Neighborhood
Commercial District) to RU-I (Urban Residential Dwelling District – Historical and Infill) for the
purpose of eliminating an existing residential non-conforming use status for the houses and
allowing the existing commercial building located at 9 Ellis Street to be used as a duplex with a
special exception.

Current Zoning

Tax Parcel # Acres Zoning Units/Ac Units
N23 0001 005

N23 0001 004

N23 0002 003

N23 0002 005

N23 0005 004

N23 0005 003

.32±

.16±

.19±

.21±

.14±

. 21±

CHV

CHV

CHV

CHV

CUN

CUN

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

1 Residence
and

1Commercial

1 Residence

1 Residence

1 Residence

1 Residence

Requested Zoning

Tax Parcel # Acres Zoning Units/Ac Units
N23 0001 004

N23 0002 003

N23 0002 005

N23 0005 004

N23 0005 003

N23 0001 005

.32±

.16±

.19±

.21±

.14±

. 21±

RU-I

RU-I

RU-I

RU-I

RU-I

RU-I

Varies

Varies

Varies

Varies

Varies

Varies

3

1

1

1

1

1



Attachments: Application for Rezoning
Location Map

Previous Discussions with Council: 9 Ellis/65 Fair Street (RZ2019-01) was previously
submitted and withdrawn to expand the area of request.



FAIR ST

EL
LIS

 ST

TEMPLE AVE
BONNELL 

ST

33

138

0

25

25

147

6

65
5

62

72

73

160

12 145
152

8

66

148

68

75

70

69 144

156

134

154

143

61

153

60 49

164

8

CITY OF NEWNAN  | Project Location

1 inch = 100 feet

CITY OF NEWNAN
PLANNING DEPT. 

25 LAGRANGE STREET
NEWNAN, GEORGIA 30263

www.ci.newnan.ga.us

N

"The information on these maps were derived from digital databases from the
City of Newnan GIS. Care was taken in the creation of these maps.  No

guarantee is given as to the accuracy or currency of any of the data. The City
of Newnan shall not be liable for any special, indirect, or consequential

damages or any damages whatsoever resulting from loss of use, data, or
profits, whether in an action of contract, negligence, or other action, arising
out of or in connection with the use of the information herein provided. The
data layers do not take place of a legal survey or any other primary source

documentation.  However, notification of any errors will be appreciated."

SITE
UV34

ÄALT
£¤27

LEGEND
CITY LIMITS

Project Location

PARCELS

FAIR ST & ELLIS ST
NEWNAN GA. 30263

ADDRESS































City of Newnan, Georgia

Planning & Zoning Department

M E M O R A N D U M

To: Cleatus Phillips, City Manager

From: Tracy S. Dunnavant, Planning Director

Re: Possible 2020 CDBG Application

Date: April 23, 2019

At your request, Staff has looked into the possibility of applying for a Community Development
Block Grant (CDBG) for 2020.  The proposed application would request funding for
improvements within the Chalk Level area.  As a multi-activity project, the maximum request
would be $1,000,000. A single- activity project, such as housing, has a maximum request of
$750,000.  All funds would need to be spent within a 24 month period from the date of award.
Cash match requirements are as follows:  No match for amounts requested up to $300,000 in
CDBG funds; 5% for amounts requested between $300,001 and $750,000 in CDBG funds; and
10% for amounts requested between $750,001 and $1,000,000.

If the City decides to move forward with the CDBG application, there are several actions that
must be taken for the application to be competitive.  First, the City would need to update its
Service Delivery Strategy (SDS) to show “housing” as a service.  The City’s current SDS does
not have “housing” listed, so an update will be required in order for the application to be
considered. Since the SDS is a multi-jurisdictional document, any revisions must be adopted by
all jurisdictions within Coweta County and approved by the Department of Community Affairs.

In addition to listing “housing” as a service in the SDS, there was some discussion as to whether
“grants” need to be listed as a funding source.  Staff would recommend that if the City does
pursue updating the SDS, “grants” should be added as a funding source under all pertinent
categories (transportation, public works, water/sewer, etc.).  This would prevent the need for
future revisions to the SDS if this becomes a requirement for other State funding sources in the
future.

Staff would also recommend developing a Revitalization Area Strategy (RAS).  Although it is not
required, an applicant can receive up to 20 extra points for having an RAS in place.  The City
already meets most of the requirements, so it should not be difficult to put together an application.
In addition, communities with an RAS are allowed to submit for CDBG grants annually, even if
they received a CDBG award in the previous year.

DCA is also requiring the local government to go through the procurement process for grant
writing/administration as well as engineering/architectural services (preliminary reports, designs,
etc) prior to submitting an application. If the City does decide to pursue a CDBG grant, Staff
should begin the request for proposal process as soon as possible.  There are a limited number of



consultants that specialize in CDBG grants and they seem to have a set number of clients that
they work with each year.

In addition to the items listed above, the new requirements are heavily documentation centric.
This means more maps, more attachments, and greater detail. They want to be certain that what
the City is proposing is feasible and can be completed within the 2 year time frame. This extra
documentation would be in addition to the required income survey to determine the percentage of
low and moderate income residents benefitted by the project.

Having assessed all of the changes, the pertinent deadlines, and the lack of available consultants,
Staff would suggest that if the Council would like to pursue a CDBG grant for 2020, the City
begin taking the necessary steps to submit an application as soon as possible. At a minimum,
some of the steps that must be taken to develop a competitive application will include the
following:

1) Determine project type (multi vs single activity) and target area with greatest need
2) Solicit Grant Writer/Administrator and Engineering Firms
3) Work with the County and its jurisdictions on an SDS update
4) Complete RAS application and apply for designation
5) Work with the consultant on application development including an income survey
6) Hold required public hearing
7) Submit final CDBG application by April 1, 2020

If you have questions regarding this report or the CDBG process itself, please feel free to contact
me.



City of Newnan, Georgia

Planning & Zoning Department

M E M O R A N D U M

To: Cleatus Phillips, City Manager

From: Tracy S. Dunnavant, Planning Director

Re: Council Initiated Rezoning

Date: April 23, 2019

At the March 26th City Council retreat, Staff was asked to look into possibly rezoning certain city
owned lots that are currently zoned RU-7.  The Council would like to allow smaller homes to be
placed on these lots, since RU-7 has a 1,600 square foot minimum for principal living space.  The
suggested zoning was RU-I, which allows house size to be determined by either the average of
the houses on the two adjacent lots or the average house size for the entire block.

In looking at the specific lots identified in the breakout sessions, Staff has some concerns which
should be brought to Council’s attention prior to advertising the rezoning. Staff’s concerns are as
follows:

1) Staff determined that some of the houses adjacent to the subject tracts were actually
larger than the 1,600 square feet required by RU-7.  By changing the zoning to RU-I,
the owner would have to construct a house that would actually be larger than required
in their current zoning designation.

2) For many of the tracts, the average block or adjacent house size is smaller than the
1,600 square feet requirement; however, in some cases an even smaller home would
actually fit in with the majority of houses on the street. By using the administrative
variance process in lieu of rezoning, Staff will have the ability to assess the lots on a
case by case basis and reduce the house size to no less than 1,200 square feet if
appropriate.

3) The Melson Street tract is currently zoned CUN.  The other properties on the block
also have this designation and appear to be grandfathered single-family homes.  Staff
would like to look at possibly rezoning these lots as well to avoid a spot zoning and
to address the non-conformity.  If Council is agreeable, Staff would use the
notification process followed during the 2017 comprehensive zoning map adoption to
ascertain owner interest.

In addition to the Melson Street tracts, Staff has been working with an individual whose property
was inadvertently rezoned from residential to commercial during the 2000 comprehensive zoning
ordinance rewrite and zoning map adoption.  Staff would like to include this tract, if the property
owner is agreeable, in order to remove the non-conforming status of the existing home.



In summary, Staff is suggesting that the administrative variance be used in lieu of initiating
rezoning for the majority of the city owned lots to provide more flexibility through a case by case
assessment.  For the CUN zoned lots, Staff would recommend looking at rezoning the block as a
whole and following the same notification process as was undertaken during the 2017
comprehensive zoning map amendment.  Staff would also recommend adding the tract zoned
commercial through a mapping error to the list of lots Council will be rezoning in order to
alleviate the non-conforming status for the existing home.

If you have questions regarding this report, please feel free to contact me.



City of Newnan, Georgia – Mayor and Council 

Date: April 23, 2019 

  Agenda Item: Land Dedication Request-Newnan Crossing East Development   

 

  Presented by: Tracy Dunnavant, Planning & Zoning Director 

Submitted by: Dean Smith, Planner 

 

Purpose:   To consider the acceptance of 9.66 acres from REO Funding Solutions III, LLC for 

future use as a City Park. 

Background:   In 2017, David Edwards, on behalf of REO Funding Solutions III, LLC, received 

approval from City Council to rezone several pieces of property located south of 

Diplomat Parkway, west of Newnan Crossing Boulevard East and east of 

Interstate I-85 (Ordinance #2017-03, approved on March 14, 2017).  As a 

condition of rezoning, REO Funding Solutions III, LLC agreed to dedicate land to 

the City for use as a community park.  The property in question consists of 9.66 

acres abutting Diplomat Parkway and Interstate I-85.(see exhibit attached). 

 The City and REO Funding Solutions III, LLC are ready to execute the necessary 

documents to acquire the property upon Council’s directive to accept the 

aforementioned 9.66 acre tract. 

 A Phase 1 Environmental study has been performed and no issues have been 

reported.  Stormwater detention ponds have been excised from the land 

dedication as the responsibility for the pond maintenance will remain with the 

developer and not the City. 

 

Options:  1.  Accept the proposed land donation. 

   2.  Do not accept the proposed land donation. 

   3.  Other direction from Council. 

 

Recommendation: Option 1. 

Attachments: Survey, rezoning exhibit, Certificate of Title, and Legal Description 





DSmith
Line















































































































































































































































City of Newnan, Georgia – Mayor and City Council

Annexation Review Form

Date: April 23, 2019

Agenda Item:  Annexation Request - Annex2019-01
30.78 ± acres located at 950 North Highway 29
By Dennis Drewyer on behalf of Cathryn and William
Sullivan

Prepared and Presented by: Tracy S. Dunnavant, Planning Director

Purpose:     A request by Dennis Drewyer on behalf of Cathryn and William Sullivan to annex
tax parcel # 073 5088 022 located at 950 North Highway 29 into the City limits.

Background:

Zoning District County – Rural Conservation (RC)
Requested Zoning RS-15
Current Land Use Vacant
Parcel Sizes A total of 30.78 ± acres

Dennis Drewyer, on behalf of Cathryn and William Sullivan, is requesting the annexation of a
total of 30.78 ± acres located at 950 North Highway 29 into the city limits. The requested zoning
is RS-15 (Suburban Residential Single Family Dwelling District – Medium Density) to
accommodate a future 40 lot residential subdivision.

RS-15 is a district designed for “low density single-family residential dwellings and related
recreational, religious and educational facilities normally required to provide the basic elements
of a balanced, orderly, convenient, and attractive residential area.” The zoning ordinance
specifies that new RS-15 districts are “most appropriately located adjacent to existing RS-15
districts, in areas in transition between denser residential neighborhoods and less dense
neighborhoods, or in areas where the future land use map indicates would be appropriate for
low density single-family residential uses”.

Surrounding Zoning Classifications

The tract to be annexed is adjacent to the following:

North: RC (County Rural Conservation – residences, church and vacant land)
East: RC (County Rural Conservation – residence and vacant land)
South: R/W – Highway 29, R-U7 (Future Subdivision) and RC (County Rural

Conservation – residence [Lake Ridge Subdivision], vacant land
and mobile homes)

West: PDR (Avery Park) RC (County Rural Conservation – residences and vacant
land)



Hilltop Village - Sullivan
Annexation/Rezoning Request
2019

2

Surrounding Land Use Pattern

The subject tract is primarily surrounded by a mixture of residential uses and vacant land.
There is an existing church across Old Atlanta Highway and some mobile homes across
Highway 29. Lot size allowed on the adjacent tracts will vary depending upon whether you are
in the City or the County. Across Old Atlanta Highway, there is a Planned Development (Avery
Park) with lots as small as 6,000 square feet.  To the west, the property is zoned RU-7 which
will allow 7,500 square foot lots.  To the east and south, the lots must be a minimum of 1 acre
per residential unit.

Summary:

Staff analyzed the following criteria prior to formulating a recommendation.

Is the proposed use suitable in view of the zoning and development of adjacent and
nearby property?

The applicant is seeking to annex the property into the City with the intention of developing it for
residential purposes. The majority of the surrounding properties are zoned RC (Rural
Conservation) in the County with residential homes, mobile homes or vacant land. The adjacent
properties in the City are all residential with either a PDR or RU-7 zoning. Staff feels the
proposed use of the property as a residential subdivision is an acceptable designation given the
surrounding zonings and uses of the neighboring properties.

The RS-15 zoning allows a maximum of 2.5 units per acre while the County’s RC zoning allows
a maximum of .625 units per acre. Maximum density in the County could yield 19 total lots with
implementation of bonus density provisions and a minimum of 35% open space.  The maximum
density yield in the City would be 76 total units. It should be noted that while these are
maximum densities, they may not be obtainable as land dedicated to street right-of-way, buffers,
and stormwater ponds must be taken into consideration.  In addition, the developer will be
required to provide a minimum of 1,000 square feet of open space per lot per City regulations.

Will the proposed use adversely affect the existing use or usability of adjacent or nearby
property?

If approved, the subject property would be denser than adjacent County zoned properties;
however, it would still be a single-family development. There will be additional traffic, but the
Engineering Department will make sure that all warranted street improvements will be made to
address any traffic concerns including line of sight issues.  Also, the applicant has agreed to
have both entrances to the property on Old Atlanta Highway with the Highway 29 drive being
gated and used for emergency access only.

Are their substantial reasons why the property cannot or should not be used as currently
zoned?

The property is currently zoned RC rural conservation in the County.  That particular zoning
district permits agriculture, forestry, and low density single-family residential land uses. As the
petitioner is requesting a residential zoning designation, the property could be used as currently
zoned; however only 19 lots would be allowed. Since the petitioner is seeking a total of 40 lots,



Hilltop Village - Sullivan
Annexation/Rezoning Request
2019

3

they must seek annexation and rezoning as the development would not be permitted under the
County’s current regulations.

Will the proposed use cause an excessive or burdensome use of public facilities or
services, including but not limited to streets, schools, water or sewer utilities, and police
or fire protection?

In an effort to ascertain impact, Staff conducted a fiscal impact analysis and sought comments
from pertinent departments/agencies, which have been included in this report.

Fiscal Impact Analysis
Methodology:

 Total # of proposed households – 40
 Average # of people per household based on 2017 census projections for Newnan –

2.54
 Total new people added for the subdivision: 40 x 2.54 = 101 new persons
 Total 2017 Population based on census projections for Newnan – 36,792
 Total 2015 Daytime Population (Total resident population (+) Total workers working in

area (-) Total workers living in area) – 56,150

Annual General Fund Expenditures per Operating Category based on 2019 Budget:

 General Government: $3,932,085 / (36,792 + 56,150) = $42.31 per person;
$42.31 x 101 = $4,273.31

 Public Safety: $14,731,555 / (36,792 + 56,150) = $158.50 per person; $158.50 x 101 =
$16,008.50

 Public Works: $3,550,681 / (36,792 + 56,150) = $38.20 per person;
$38.20 x 101 = $3,858.20

 Sanitation Fund Transfer: $140,000 / (36,792 + 56,150) = $) = $1.51 per person;
$1.51 x 101 = $ 152.51

 Street Fund Transfer: $200,000 / (36,792 + 56,150) = $) = $2.15 per person;
$2.15 x 101 = $ 217.15

 Community Development:  $2,926,377 / (36,792 + 56,150) = $31.49;
$31.49 x 101 = $3,180.49

 Other Services  (Main Street, Business Development, Carnegie Building): $822,202 /
(36,792 + 56,150) = $8.85 per person; $8.85 x 101 = $893.85

Projected Annual Expenditures: $28,584.01

Annual Revenues based on 2019 Budget

 Property Taxes:  Based on $350,000 home with a 4.0 millage rate = $560.00;
$560.00 x 40 = $22,400.00

 Sales Tax Generated:  $7,000,000 budgeted / (36,792 + 56,150) = $75.32 per person;
$75.32 x 101 = $7,607.32

 Inspections and Permits: $680,000 / (36,792 + 56,150) = $7.32 per person;
$7.32 x 101 = $739.32

Projected Annual Revenues for the Subdivision: $30,746.64



Hilltop Village - Sullivan
Annexation/Rezoning Request
2019

4

Up Front Revenues during Construction

 Impact Fees: 40 x $1,136.07 (residential fee) = $45,442.80
 Permits and Inspections: (2,000 square foot house at $350,000) $1,200 x 40 = $48,000

Projected up front revenues for the subdivision: $93,442.80

The fiscal impact analysis shows that the development will result in $2,162.63 more in revenues
vs. expenditures annually. It should be noted that this figure is an estimate and does not
include the upfront revenues from impact fees nor does it take into consideration other funding
sources such as home occupation licenses, an increase in LMIG (Local Maintenance and
Improvement Grant) funding which is based on population and road miles, and impact on the
City’s portion of the local option sales tax which is based upon the City’s overall percentage of
population within the County. These revenue sources are based on “unknowns” which can only
be determined when the subdivision is developed.

Fire: Fire Chief Stephen Brown indicated that the City of Newnan Fire Department would be
able to service this property. There is also a mutual aid agreement with the County in place if
needed.

Police: Police Chief Buster Meadows stated this will result in an increase on calls for service.
He stated they can handle the call volume, but it will cut into the response times.

Water and Sewer: According to Scott Tolar, Newnan Utilities will be able to provide water and
sewer to the property. The developer will be responsible for all upgrade costs necessary to
serve the development.

Engineering: The City Engineer cited the following issues that would need to be addressed
during the development phase:

Environmental Concerns:

 The development plan shall follow and comply fully with the Georgia Storm Water
Management Manual, latest edition.  All storm water management facilities shall be
located on open space.

 All streams, wetlands and other environmentally sensitive areas such as, floodplain,
and cemeteries shall be determined and located within open space to the extent
practically possible. City stream buffers will be 50’ undisturbed with an additional 25’
impervious surface setback.

Access, Layout, and Road Concerns:

1. The Georgia DOT will have review and permit authority for any work proposed to
access Hwy 29 N

2. ADA compliant five (5) foot sidewalks shall be provided on both sides of all streets
within the community.



Hilltop Village - Sullivan
Annexation/Rezoning Request
2019

5

3. All open spaces shall be ADA compliant with sidewalk access and connectivity to the
public street system.

Trip Generation Existing Zoning:

This existing site is zoned for RC and is located with Coweta County with 19 single family
homes possible.  Trip generation from this site was calculated using ITE Trip Generation
Manual, 9th edition.

Single-Family Detached Housing: 19 homes

a. Weekday :  9.52/unit = 181 vpd
b. Weekday peak AM hour: .77/unit = 15 vph
c. Weekday peak PM hour: 1.02 /unit = 19 vph
d. Sunday: 8.62/unit = 164 vpd
e. Saturday 9.91/ unit = 188 vpd

Trip Generation Proposed Zoning:

This proposed project includes 40 single family residential homes on 30.78 acres.  Anticipated
trips generated from this project using ITE Trip Generation Manual, 9th edition.

Single-Family Detached Housing: 40 homes

f. Weekday :  9.52/unit =  381 vpd
g. Weekday peak AM hour: .77/unit = 31 vph
h. Weekday peak PM hour: 1.02 /unit = 41 vph
i. Sunday: 8.62/unit = 345 vpd
j. Saturday 9.91/ unit = 396 vpd

TRAFFIC GENERATION SUMMARY

DAY EXISTING
TRIPS

PROPOSED
TRIPS

DIFFERENCE %
INCREASE

WEEKDAY (vpd) 181 381 +200 110
WEEKDAY AM
PEAK (vph)

15 31 +16 107

WEEKDAY PM
PEAK (vph)

19 41 +22 115

SUNDAY (vpd) 164 345 +181 110

SATURDAY (vpd) 188 396 +208 111

The anticipated traffic generation from this zoning change is an increase on all days of the
week.   The overall trend would be more vehicular traffic onto local roads as a result of this
rezoning.  The traffic will increase above the existing zoning trips by 111% on average.



Hilltop Village - Sullivan
Annexation/Rezoning Request
2019

6

The level of increase in traffic will likely result in the need for both left turn lanes and right turn
lanes for entrances and will involve coordination with the County Engineering department as it
will affect a County maintained section of Old Atlanta Road. The intersection of Howard Hughes
and the main entrance may also be made safer with the use of a roundabout.  An engineering
study will be required to determine best solution for this intersection and will need to be
approved in conjunction with Coweta County.

School System: Ronnie Cheek has indicated that school capacity is always an ongoing
concern. If approved, the developer would needs to provide advance notice of a schedule,
proposed build-out time, number of phases, and target market for construction and planning
purposes. With the development being limited to 40 units, it is anticipated that the subdivision
would generate roughly 88 more school aged children according to national statistics from the
2015 census.

Is the proposed use compatible with the purpose and intent of the comprehensive plan?

The City of Newnan’s Comprehensive Plan does not address these particular parcels, as they
are presently in the County.  However, the Comprehensive Plan in general does identify the lack
of available land for future development as a potential issue.

The County staff report specifies that both the Coweta County Future Development Map (2016-
2036) and Comprehensive Land Use Plan recommends rural land uses, estate lots and low
density single-family residential developments where the County adjoins the city limits. They
further state that “while the subdivision as proposed will be denser than what is permitted in the
county, the existing vegetation and the ponds adjoining Highway 29 will be preserved which will
assist in maintaining the scenic and rural feel of this important transportation corridor.”

Will the use be consistent with the purpose and intent of the proposed zoning district?

The applicant is proposing a future residential development; therefore, RS-15 would be an
appropriate zoning designation.

Is the proposed use supported by new or changing conditions not anticipated by the
comprehensive plan?

As this property is in the County, it is not addressed by the City of Newnan Comprehensive
Plan; however, the County Comprehensive Land Use Plan shows that the property would be
consistent as a residential subdivision.

Does the proposed use reflect a reasonable balance between the promotion of the public
health, safety, morality, or general welfare and the right to unrestricted use of property?

Staff does feel the proposed use as a residential subdivision reflects a reasonable balance with
the conditions recommended in the report and any traffic concerns being mitigated during the
plan review phase.

Coweta County Response to the Annexation:

The Coweta County Board of Commissioners was provided information on the annexation and
considered the request at their March 12, 2019 meeting. At that time, the Commission voted



Hilltop Village - Sullivan
Annexation/Rezoning Request
2019

7

not to object to the annexation, but they did ask that the City consider the following if the
property is annexed:

1. If the subject annexation is approved, the portion of Old Atlanta Hwy south of Howard
Hughes Road along the subject property will be entirely within the City of Newnan’s
jurisdiction.

2. Since the functional classification of Old Atlanta Highway is a “local” road, the County
Engineer recommends that the proposed subdivision’s primary entrance on the inside of
the curve at Howard Hughes Road would have limited sight distance.  Howard Hughes
Road is also slightly skewed at its intersection with Old Atlanta Highway, making the
proposed entrance at this location less desirable for the County.  If the developer and
the City desire an entrance aligning with Howard Hughes Road, then widening and
geometric improvements would be necessary on each approach.

3. The City of Newnan shall ensure that any impacts to U.S.and State jurisdictional waters
on or along the subject property are properly permitted.

4. Stormwater management should meet the requirements of the Metropolitan North
Georgia Water Planning District.

Conditions Proffered as Part of the Annexation:

1. Property (as zoned RS-15) shall be limited to a maximum yield of RS-20 density (1.5
units per acre, but designed, approved and developed by RS-15 regulations/lot size.

2. The lots fronting on Old Atlanta Highway shall be provided with a parallel (private)
access drive with two (2) entries.

3. The existing driveway to Highway 29 North shall be repaired to emergency vehicle
capacity, then gated for access in case of emergency situations where other access is
blocked.

4. Photos of front elevations, character, details, and building materials presented as part of
the application.

5. Minimum square feet of living space shall be proffered at 2,000 square feet with
approximately 60% of space “down” to prohibit a 1,000 square feet over 1,000 square
feet box unit.

6. Garages shall face front or side entry, but must utilize carriage house doors with
complimentary colors.

Options:

A. Recommend approval of the applicants’ request to annex the subject properties into
the corporate limits of Newnan and rezone the property to RS-15

B. Recommend approval of the annexation and rezoning request with conditions
C. Recommend denial of the annexation and rezoning request



Hilltop Village - Sullivan
Annexation/Rezoning Request
2019

8

Planning Commission Recommendation:

Staff has reviewed the application and agrees that the site is appropriate for a residential
subdivision.  The project is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan’s identified need to address
the lack of available land within the city limits and it provides a larger lot option with the RS-15
zoning that rarely is sought for annexations and rezonings. In addition, while it is denser than
the current zoning allowed in the county, the existing vegetation and ponds will be preserved
which will assist in maintaining the scenic and rural feel of the Highway 29 North corridor. Also,
both of the subdivision’s entrance will be located on Old Atlanta Highway, so there will be no
access off Highway 29 except for emergency purposes.

In terms of the proposed housing product, elevations have been provided to show the type of
house that will be built.  The applicant is willing to proffer a 2,000 square foot home and has
indicated that the price point will begin at $350,000.  In addition, the homes will be constructed
using a combination of masonry and hardie board with architectural shingles.

The Planning Commission at their March 12, 2019 meeting held a public hearing regarding the
rezoning request and voted unanimously to recommend Option “B”; approve the
annexation/rezoning request with the following conditions:

1. The development will be consistent with the information and elevations that were
provided as part of the annexation application.

2. The development shall be limited to a maximum of 40 lots.

3. Homes will be constructed using masonry products (brick, stone, rock, and cultured
stone), hardie board, and architectural shingles. Use of vinyl siding shall be limited to
trim work only.

4. An engineering study will be required to determine the best solution for the
development’s intersection with Howard Hughes Road which will need to be approved in
conjunction with Coweta County.

5. Amenities shall consist of pocket parks, pathways, and open space areas to feature the
two existing ponds as depicted on the proposed concept plan.

6. The lots fronting on Old Atlanta Highway shall be provided with a parallel (private)
access drive with two (2) entries.  All private drives shall be developed to city street
standards and shall be maintained in perpetuity by the developer/home owner’s
association.

7. The existing driveway to Highway 29 North shall be repaired to emergency vehicle
capacity, then gated for access in case of emergency situations where other access is
blocked.

8. Minimum square feet of living space shall be proffered at 2,000 square feet with
approximately 60% of space “down” to prohibit a 1,000 square feet over 1,000 square
feet box unit.

9. Garages shall face front or side entry, but must utilize carriage house doors with
complimentary colors.



Hilltop Village - Sullivan
Annexation/Rezoning Request
2019

9

10. The architecture shall reflect not only the style and design but the proportion of the
primary masonry materials that are shown on the colored renderings provided as part of
the application.

Attachments:
Letter from Applicant
Annexation Application
Elevations and Concept Drawings
Survey
Location Map
Service Provider Comments
Coweta County Staff Report

Previous Discussions with Council: February 12, 2019























































25 La Grange Street ●              Newnan, Georgia  30263                ●              (770) 254-2354

The City of Newnan, Georgia
Public Works Department

2/28/2019

Engineering Department Review

Annexation and Rezoning Request:
 073 5088 002
 30.78 acres
 40 lots proposed

Environmental Concerns:

1. The development plan shall follow and comply fully with the Georgia Storm
Water Management Manual, latest edition. All storm water management
facilities shall be located on open space.

2. All streams, wetlands and other environmentally sensitive areas such as,
floodplain, and cemeteries shall be determined and located within open space
to the extent practically possible. City stream buffers will be 50’ undisturbed
with an additional 25’ impervious surface setback.

Access, Layout, and Road Concerns:

1. The Georgia DOT will have review and permit authority for any work
proposed to access Hwy 29 N

2. ADA compliant five (5) foot sidewalks shall be provided on both sides of all
streets within the community.

3. All open spaces shall be ADA compliant with sidewalk access and
connectivity to the public street system.

Trip Generation Existing Zoning:

This existing site is zoned for RC and is located with Coweta County with 19 single
family homes possible. Trip generation from this site was calculated using ITE Trip
Generation Manual, 9th edition.

Single-Family Detached Housing: 19 homes

a. Weekday :  9.52/unit = 181 vpd



b. Weekday peak AM hour: .77/unit = 15 vph
c. Weekday peak PM hour: 1.02 /unit = 19 vph
d. Sunday: 8.62/unit = 164 vpd
e. Saturday 9.91/ unit = 188 vpd

Trip Generation Proposed Zoning:

This proposed project includes 40 single family residential homes on 30.78 acres.
Anticipated trips generated from this project using ITE Trip Generation Manual, 9th

edition.

Single-Family Detached Housing: 40 homes

f. Weekday :  9.52/unit = 381 vpd
g. Weekday peak AM hour: .77/unit = 31 vph
h. Weekday peak PM hour: 1.02 /unit = 41 vph
i. Sunday: 8.62/unit = 345 vpd
j. Saturday 9.91/ unit = 396 vpd

TRAFFIC GENERATION SUMMARY

DAY EXISTING
TRIPS

PROPOSED
TRIPS

DIFFERENCE %
INCREASE

WEEKDAY (vpd) 181 381 +200 110
WEEKDAY AM
PEAK (vph)

15 31 +16 107

WEEKDAY PM
PEAK (vph)

19 41 +22 115

SUNDAY (vpd) 164 345 +181 110

SATURDAY
(vpd)

188 396 +208 111

The anticipated traffic generation from this zoning change is an increase on all days of
the week. The overall trend would be more vehicular traffic onto local roads as a result
of this rezoning.  The traffic will increase above the existing zoning trips by 111% on
average.

The level of increase in traffic will likely result in the need for both left turn lanes and
right turn lanes for entrances and will involve coordination with the County Engineering
department as it will affect a County maintained section of Old Atlanta road. The
intersection of Howard Hughes and the main entrance may also be made safer with the
use of a roundabout.  An engineering study will be required to determine best solution for
this intersection and will need to be approved in conjunction with Coweta County.



 

NEWNAN POLICE DEPARTMENT 

CITY OF NEWNAN 

1 Joseph Hannah Blvd 

P.O. Box 1193 

Newnan, GA  30264 

770-254-2355 

FAX: 678-423-4130 

 

 

February 22, 2019 

 

 

To: Tracy Dunnavant  

      Planning and Zoning Director 

 

Reference: Annex2019-01 

 

Dear Mrs. Dunnavant, 

 

 In reviewing historical information concerning number of calls for service, response time, and 

number of officers, following is the impact to the police department services for the 40 single-family units 

that will occupy this site. 

 The numbers are projected with 35 Officers being used to determine calls per officers.  These 35 

officers are patrol officers who will normally be the first responders to any call for service. 

  

Annual 

Calls 

for 

service 

Estimated 

Population 

Calls 

per 

citizen 

Calls 

per 

Officer 

Estimated 

occupants 

each new 

resident 

Calls per 

additional 

resident 

Additional 

calls per 

Officer 

Estimated 

time on 

each call 

Response 

time  

54,954 34,000 1.62 1,571 2.55 166 5 1 hour 5 min. 

 

 While these numbers may appear to be low in number, it does take an officer off the street 

longer than just taking information, and filing a report. 

 

 We would be able to service this development, but it would require a longer response time. 

 

Respectfully, 

 

Douglas L. Meadows 

Chief of Police 

  

 









Coweta County School System 
 

170 Werz Industrial Blvd. 
Newnan, GA  30263 

Phone:  770-254-2750 
 

March 1, 2019 

 

 

Tracy Dunnavant 
Planning Director 
City of Newnan 
25 LaGrange Street 
Newnan, GA 30263 
 
Re:  Annexation Request Annex 2019-01 
 
Ms. Dunnavant, 
 
We have reviewed the annexation request referenced above and offer the following 
comments based on the information provided: 
This application request annexation of 30.78 acres from Coweta County into the City of 
Newnan.  If approved, this request would create a higher density zoning designation 
than the current zoning for this parcel.  This may present challenges when planning for 
school enrollment and meeting student needs.  Due to the higher density housing in the 
area of the proposal, school capacity is an ongoing concern.  Many of the schools 
serving that area are at or near capacity.  If approved, we would request that the 
developer provide us advanced notice of the following information for our planning 
purposes: 
What is the construction schedule for the project? 
What is the proposed build-out timeline 
Will the project be built in phases? 
Will there be a targeted market, e.g., senior citizens? 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to provide feedback. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 

Ronnie Cheek 

 

Ronald C. Cheek 

Director of Facilities 

Coweta County Schools 

(770)254-2750 x203 

ronnie.cheek@cowetaschools.net 
 
cc: Vince Bass 
 

Coweta Committed to Student Success 

http://ronnie.cheek@cowetaschools.net/


  

  
22 East Broad Street 
Newnan, GA 30263 
www.coweta.ga.us 

770-254-2635 
Fax - 770-254-2606 

 

 
Inter-Office Memorandum to:  Board of Commissioners 
 
From:     Angela B. White, Asst Dir/Community Development 
 
Date:     March 5, 2019 
 
Re:     Proposed Annexation, City of Newnan 

HB 2 Annexation Procedures 

Applicant:  Sullivan, Cathryn & William 

30.78 acres located at 950 N. Hwy 29, Newnan 

Tax ID# 073 5088 002     

 Petition # AN 001-19 

3rd Commission District 

 

 
The City of Newnan is proposing the annexation of 30.786± acres located at 950 N. Hwy 29, Newnan.  
The applicants, Cathryn & William Sullivan are requesting the City of Newnan’s zoning of RS-15 
(Suburban Residential Single-Family Dwelling District – Medium Density) to accommodate a proposed 
40-unit single-family residential subdivision with access off Old Atlanta Highway.  
 
Various county departments have reviewed the annexation proposal and specifically identified their 
comments as follows: 
 
Building Department 
The Building Department does not have any concerns regarding this proposed annexation. 
 
Emergency Management/ E-911 
The Office of Emergency Management / 911 has no concerns with this request.  
 
Water and Sewage Authority 
No comment 
 
Fire Department 
The Fire Marshal’s Office has no objections to this request. 
 
Environmental Health 
The CCEHD has no objection to the above referenced request.  Project will be served by municipal water 
and sewer.  If you have any questions, please contact our office. 
 



  

 
Public Works/Transportation 
The City of Newnan is proposing to annex approximately 30.789 acres located at 950 N. Hwy 29.  The 
subject property is proposed to be rezoned from Coweta County’s RC (Rural Conservation) zoning 
district to the city’s RS-15 (Suburban Residential Single-Family Dwelling-Medium Density) zoning district. 
The applicant proposes to develop a 40-unit single-family residential subdivision with primary access off 
of Old Atlanta Highway. An existing driveway off of US 29 is proposed for “emergency vehicle access”. 
 
If the subject property were developed under Coweta County’s RC zoning, it could yield a maximum of 
19 single family lots/units. This would be 21 less units than what is proposed under the city’s RS-15 
zoning (Source: County Planner).  
 
Below are trip generation estimates using the ITE Trip Generation Manual, 8th Edition for Single-Family 
Detached Housing (Land Use 210) showing a comparison of trips by allowable number of detached units 
per the city’s and county’s regulations: 
 

Land Use  
(ITE Code) 

Unit of 
Measure 

Weekday 
(#Enter & 
Exit)* 

AM Peak 
(#Enter & 
Exit)* 

PM Peak 
(#Enter & 
Exit)* 

Saturday 
 (#Enter & 
Exit)* 

Sunday 
(#Enter & 
Exit)* 

Single Family 
Detached (210) 
-- Newnan 

40 units 382 
(191/191
) 

31 
(8/23) 

40 
(26/14) 

404 
(202/202) 
 

350 
(175/175) 

Single Family 
Detached (210) 
-- Coweta 

19 units 182 
(91/91) 

15 
(4/11) 

19 
(12/7) 

192 
(96/96) 

166 
(83/83) 

Difference 21 units 200 16 37 212 184 

*Weekday AM Peak Hour varies between 7:00 a.m.-9:00 a.m. and PM Peak Hour varies between  
4:00 p.m. - 6:00 p.m.  
 
The trip estimates show that 200 additional weekday trips, 16 additional AM Peak trips, 37 additional 
PM Peak trips, 212 additional Saturday trips, and 184 additional Sunday trips would be generated under 
the city’s RS-15 zoning versus the county’s RC zoning.  
 
Per the Coweta County Functional Classification Thoroughfare Plan map, Old Atlanta Highway is 
classified as a “Local” roadway and US 29 is classified as a “Minor Arterial” roadway.   
 
The following are a list of road improvement projects in the vicinity of the subject property that are 
either planned or programmed for construction: 
 

▪ None   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  

The following additional comments are offered for the city’s consideration: 
 

1) If the subject annexation is approved, the portion of Old Atlanta Hwy south of Howard Hughes 
Road along the subject property will be entirely within the City of Newnan’s jurisdiction. 

2) Since the functional classification of Old Atlanta Highway is a “Local” road, the County Engineer 
recommends that the proposed subdivision’s primary entrance align with Mumford Drive and 
include full left-turn lanes in each direction to serve both subdivisions. Given the horizontal 
curvature of Old Atlanta Hwy, the proposed entrance on the inside of the curve at Howard 
Hughes Road would have limited sight distance. Howard Hughes Rd is also slightly skewed at its 
intersection with Old Atlanta Hwy, making the proposed entrance at this location less desirable 
for the County. If the developer and the City desire an entrance aligning with Howard Hughes 
Rd, then widening and geometric improvements would be necessary on each approach. 

3) Any improvements to the existing driveway off of US 29 proposed for “emergency vehicle 
access” will require approval by the Georgia D.O.T. 

4) The City of Newnan shall ensure that any impacts to U.S. and State jurisdictional waters on or 
along the subject property are properly permitted.  

5) Stormwater management should meet the requirements of the Metropolitan North Georgia 
Water Planning District.  

 
Planner 
 
Annexation Review Procedures include the following comparisons as valid grounds for land use 
objections:  
 

1. Differences in intensity between the current unincorporated zoning districts and the proposed 
municipal zoning districts; and,  

2. The consistency of proposed zoning with the recommendation of the Coweta County 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan and Future Development Map.  

 
Analysis of adjoining properties 
The subject tract adjoins an undeveloped parcel to the south and the Avery Park subdivision to the west, 
both of which are in the city limits of Newnan.  An undeveloped parcel adjoins the northern property 
boundary, while Highway 29 borders the eastern property boundary.  Access to the site is currently 
provided via a gravel drive off Highway 29.  The Applicant is proposing to modify that entrance to serve 
as emergency access only and provide access to the subdivision off of Old Atlanta Highway directly 
across from Howard Hughes Road. 
 
Existing development in the general vicinity of the property includes low to medium density and estate 
residential with agricultural uses in the unincorporated county, with medium to high density residential 
in the city of Newnan.  The property is also located within 2,000 LF of the Newnan Country Club. 
 

Direction Location Acreage Zoning 

Future  
Development 

Map/  
Land Use 

Current Use 

North 
Coweta 
County 

+/- 2.0 
RC 

Rural 
Conservation 

Infill Neighborhood 
Low Density 

Residential 



  

North 
Coweta 
County 

+/- 4.0 
RC 

Rural 
Conservation 

Infill Neighborhood 
Low Density 

Institutional 
(Church) 

North 
Coweta 
County 

+/- 1.0 
RC 

Rural 
Conservation 

Infill Neighborhood 
Low Density 

Residential 

North 
Coweta 
County 

+/- 20.07 
RC 

Rural 
Conservation 

Infill Neighborhood 
Low Density 

Undeveloped 

East 
Coweta 
County 

+/- 4.50 
RC 

Rural 
Conservation 

Infill Neighborhood 
Low Density 

Undeveloped 

East 
Coweta 
County 

+/- 2.29 
RC 

Rural 
Conservation 

Infill Neighborhood 
Low Density 

Residential 

South 
Coweta 
County 

+/- 4.33 
RC 

Rural 
Conservation 

Infill Neighborhood 
Low Density 

Residential 
(Lake Ridge s/d) 

South 
City of 

Newnan 
+/- 18.62 

RU-7 
Residential 

Undeveloped Undeveloped 

South 
City of 

Newnan 
+/- 0.70 

RU-7 
Residential 

Undeveloped Undeveloped 

East 
City of 

Newnan 
+/- 0.30 

PDR 
Planned 

Development 
Single Family 

Residential 
(Avery Park s/d) 

East 
City of 

Newnan 
+/- 0.30 

PDR 
Planned 

Development 
Single Family 

Residential 
(Avery Park s/d) 

East 
City of 

Newnan 
+/- 0.30 

PDR 
Planned 

Development 
Single Family 

Residential 
(Avery Park s/d) 

East 
City of 

Newnan 
+/- 0.30 

PDR 
Planned 

Development 
Single Family 

Residential 
(Avery Park s/d) 

East 
City of 

Newnan 
+/- 0.30 

PDR 
Planned 

Development 
Single Family 

Residential 
(Avery Park s/d) 

East 
City of 

Newnan 
+/- 0.30 

PDR 
Planned 

Development 
Single Family 

Residential 
(Avery Park s/d) 

East 
City of 

Newnan 
+/- 0.34 

PDR 
Planned 

Development 
Single Family 

Residential 
(Avery Park s/d) 

East 
City of 

Newnan 
+/- 5.00 

PDR 
Planned 

Development 

Parks and 
Conservation 

Open Space 
(Avery Park s/d) 

 



  

Zoning - overview 
The RC Rural Conservation zoning district is intended for agricultural and/ or forestry uses and for estate 
or low-density single-family detached residential uses.  The district requires a minimum lot size of one 
acre and a maximum density of 0.625 units per acre subject to the implementation of bonus density 
provisions. 
 
The Applicant is seeking a zoning designation of RS-15 Suburban Residential Single-Family Dwelling 
District which permits a minimum lot size of 15,000 SF and a maximum density of 2.5 units per acre.  
Within their application to the City of Newnan, the Applicant has proffered to establish the maximum 
number of units permitted within the RS-20 zoning (40 lots) at a density of +/- 1.25 units per acre. 
 
Land Use - overview 
The subject tract, along with the adjoining tracts within the unincorporated county, are located within 
the Infill Neighborhood Low Density Character Area as identified on the Future Development Map.  This 
character area recommends residential neighborhoods comprised primarily of single-family detached 
homes in two density classifications – with or without public sewer.  The property is designated as “low 
density” due to the fact sanitary sewer is not available. 
 
The Coweta County Community Plan 2016-2036 (adopted October 20, 2016) includes the following 
policies which are intended to guide development within the Infill Neighborhood Low Density character 
area:  
 

*Encourage residential infill development within areas that are accessible to existing public utilities           
and services and Interstate-85. 
* Increase the housing choices available for Coweta County residents. 
* New residential areas should be built in areas with adequate transportation access, environmental    
suitability, and availability of public utilities and services. 

* Foster contiguous and connected development.  Avoid “leapfrog” development. 
* The density of residential subdivisions should be in accordance with the level of transportation 
access, environmental suitability, availability of public water and sewer, and other public facilities. 
Residential developments should be planned in a compact, walkable pattern that integrates them 
with open space, schools, parks, recreation, retail services, and other amenities. 

 
Density comparison 
Gross acreage  = total acreage of a tract of land. 
  = 30.78 acres 
 
Net Development Acreage = gross acreage minus the 100-year floodplain, cemeteries, wetlands, 
habitat of endangered species, or areas characterized by a slope of 25 percent or greater.   
 
 = gross acreage – open space 
 = 30.78 acres – 0.00* 
 = 30.78 acres 
 
* It does not appear there are any floodplains, cemeteries, wetlands, etc. on this tract of land. 
 
 
 



  

Within the RC district (RCSD-A) – Coweta County 
Design option  = RCSD-A 
 
Open space (minimum) = 35% of the development tract 
 = 30.78 acres x 0.35 
 = 10.77 acres 
 
Base density yield = Net Developable Acreage x 0.5 units/ acre 
 = 30.78 acres x 0.5 units/ acre 
 = 15 lots 
 
Maximum density yield = Net Developable Acreage x 0.625 units/ acre** 
 = 30.78 acres x 0.625 units/ acre 
 = 19 lots 
 
**with implementation of bonus density provisions and the provision of no less than 35% open space 
 
Minimum lot size = 43,560 SF***  
 
***must be served by an individual septic tank and conventional drain field 
 
The maximum density within the county would yield no more than 19 lots.  However, it should be noted 
these numbers do not include street rights-of-way, stormwater ponds, or the buffers required adjacent 
to Highway 29, Old Atlanta Highway or the adjoining properties.  They also do not take into account the 
minimum depth of open space required within the RC district which must average no less than 125’, 
with no measurement less than 100’ between the right-of-way and the boundary of a lot.  
 
RS-15 district – City of Newnan 
Maximum density = Net Developable Acreage x 2.5 units/ acre 
 = 30.78 acres x 2.5 units/ acre 
 = 76 units/ acre 
 
Minimum lot size:  15,000 SF 
Minimum open space: 76,000 SF (1,000 SF per lot or 1.74 acres)  
 
It should be noted these numbers (as well) do not include street rights-of-way, stormwater ponds, or 
any buffers the city might require adjacent to Highway 29, Old Atlanta Highway or the adjoining 
properties.   
 

 

Impact to adjacent Land Use Designations in unincorporated Coweta County 
The city’s RS-15, PDR and PDC zoning districts allow more density than what is permitted within the 
unincorporated county, primarily because of the proximity to sanitary sewer.  Other than the parcels 
immediately south and north of the subject tract, most of the property within the general area are 
developed as low to medium density or estate residential. 
 
The parcels within the unincorporated county will remain zoned RC Rural Conservation and continue to 
be designated as Infill Neighborhood Low Density Character Area on the Future Development Map. 



  

Consistency of zoning with the Coweta County Comprehensive Land Use Plan 
Both the Coweta County Comprehensive Land Use Plan and Future Development Map recommend rural 
land uses, estate and low density single-family residential development adjoining the Newnan city limits.  
While the subdivision as proposed will be more dense than what is permitted in the county, the existing 
vegetation and the ponds adjoining Highway 29 will be preserved which will assist in maintaining the 
scenic and rural feel of this important transportation corridor. 
 
Policies adopted as a part of this planning process that support the annexation and zoning as proposed 
include: 
 
Sense of Place 
SP-1: Promote efficient use of land by encouraging well-designed, pedestrian-oriented developments 

that include a mix of uses and creative use of land. 
 
SP-6: Integrate recreation areas and greenspace throughout our community; within neighborhoods, 

along streets, in parking lots, and within commercial and industrial developments. 
 
SP-10: Enact clear design guidelines so that streets, buildings, and public spaces work together to 

create a “sense of place.” 
 
SP-12: Promote development that is sensitive to the land and gives consideration to adjoining, existing 

and planned development, as well as the overall community. 

• Preserve the rural character of Coweta County and promote opportunities for 
agricultural and forestry activities to remain a vital part of our community. 

• Develop a recognizable transition from the urban to the rural areas of our community. 

• Guide appropriate residential and nonresidential infill development and redevelopment 
in a way that complements surrounding areas. 

• Discourage “leapfrog” development across undeveloped areas. 
 
SP-36:  Encourage new development to incorporate building scale and architecture that enhances and 

draws from Coweta’s historical architecture and rural and urban heritage. 
 
Transportation 
TR-8: Require sidewalks in all new developments. 
 
TR-9: Address the location, vehicular/pedestrian/open space design, landscaping, and furnishing of 

residential and non-residential streets as one of the community’s most important components 
contributing to the character, structure, and development pattern of the community. 

 
TR-10: Support transportation and greenway corridors through the community standards of aesthetics, 

urban design, and environmental stewardship. 
 
TR-11: Encourage and promote the design and engineering of roads and other facilities to fit 

topography and other site conditions. 
 
TR-13: Promote and support the provision of bicycle and pedestrian ways. 
  
TR-14: Ensure that new developments will be designed to be conducive to walking and biking. 



  

TR-28: Manage access along collector and arterial streets. 
 
TR-32: Seek to reduce the number of curb cuts into arterial streets and roadways to mitigate traffic 

congestion. 
 
Housing 
H-1: Accommodate our diverse population by providing developments that are a harmonious 

mixture of housing types and uses. 
 
H-2: Plan for a variety of housing types, styles, and price points, including affordable and high-end 

products, toward the goal of creating “lifecycle” housing in the community. 
 
H-3: Maintain and enhance the integrity and nature of existing residential neighborhoods. 
 
H-4: Achieve a level of quality in safety, maintenance, and arrangement of the residential 

environment; which will lead to improved living conditions for all residents of Coweta County. 
 
H-5: Protect residential areas from encroachment of incompatible uses including odor, light, and 

noise. 
 
H-7: Ensure that quality housing is available for residents at all stages of their lives.  Provide for 

“lifecycle” housing. 
 
H-8: Create affordable housing opportunities to ensure that all those who work in the community 

have a viable choice or option to live in the community. 
 
H-9: Encourage home ownership by increasing opportunities for low-to-moderate income families to 

move into affordable owner-occupied housing. 
 
H-13: View each component of neighborhoods, schools, parks, residences, and businesses, as part of 

the greater community; and facilitate access among land uses through planned connections of 
walkways, bike paths, roads, and public transportation. 

 
H-15: Encourage appropriate infill housing development in existing neighborhoods. 
  
H-16: Encourage walkable, safe neighborhoods with efficient urban residential densities and pleasant, 

accessible public gathering places. 
 
H-17: Encourage residential development to place parks and community facilities as focal points in 

neighborhoods. 
 
H-18: Provide adequate space for recreational use in all neighborhoods. 
 
H-19: Work to calm traffic through existing neighborhoods. 
 
 
 
 



  

Natural Resources 
NR-2: Protect ground and surface water sources and water supply intakes to ensure adequate supplies 

of quality water. 

• Support strict enforcement of regulations for use and quality of Coweta County's water 
resources. 

• Assure that adequate erosion and sedimentation control measures are taken in 
watershed areas to protect County water supplies. 

• Ensure that all land disturbing activities are 
carried out in such a way as to sufficiently protect the public drinking water supply 
reservoirs and intakes. 

• Encourage and support the development and implementation of water and sewer 
improvement programs in order to protect sensitive water resources. 

 
NR-4: Promote and pursue the preservation of scenic and environmentally sensitive areas (streams, 

rock out-cropping, meadow, steep slope) for their ecological and aesthetic value, and for 
common enjoyment. 

 
NR-7: Encourage the preservation and planting of trees and other vegetation that enhance community 

livability and appearance. 
 
NR-11:  The protection and conservation of our community’s resources will play an important role in the 

land use decision-making process.  

• Develop land development regulations and/or incentives to help direct development 
away from environmentally sensitive areas. 

• Institute limitation on land disturbance and clear cutting for development purposes to 
reduce impacts on natural topography and existing vegetation 

• Strongly discourage any structural development in the County’s floodplains. 
 
NR-13: Require that adequate and appropriate drainage systems be constructed and maintained as part 

of all development activities. 
 
NR-14:  Encourage construction practices that minimize soil erosion and sedimentation. 

• Require erosion control during and revegetation immediately after development. 
 
Community Facilities and Services 
CFS-21: Promote and encourage the use of underground utilities wherever possible in developing areas. 
 
CFS-24: Provide removal and treatment of sewerage in the most environmentally-safe, economical and 

efficient manner. 

• Seek state and federal funding to implement a phased sewer improvements program. 

• Discourage use of septic tanks and settling ponds for all but low- density residential 
development. 

 
 
 
 
 



  

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
The county governing authority may by majority vote to object to the annexation because of a material 
increase in burden upon the county directly related to any one or more of the following: 
 

1. Substantial change in zoning or land use 
 
2. Substantial increase in density 

 
3. Substantial infrastructure demands related to the proposed change in zoning or land use 

 
In order for an objection to be valid, the proposed change in zoning or land use must result in: 
 

1. A substantial change in the intensity of the allowable use of the property or a change to 
a significantly different allowable use; OR 

 
2. A use which significantly increases the net cost of infrastructure or significantly 

diminishes the value or useful life of a capital outlay project; AND 
 
3. Differ substantially from the existing uses suggested for the property pursuant to the 

county’s zoning ordinance or its land use ordinances. 
 
 
While the City’s RS-15 is at a higher density than the existing RC zoning of the property, it is consistent 
with the County’s Future Development Map for this location.  In addition, it will have no impact on the 
infrastructure or capital outlay.  
 
 
Therefore, based upon the above staff comments and the HB 2 Annexation Procedures for Objection, 
the Coweta County Planning Department recommends that no objection be filed to the annexation due 
to the constraints of the law. 
 
 
However, the Coweta County Planning Department submits the following area of concern that we 
request the City of Newnan incorporate during the annexation process: 
 

1) If the subject annexation is approved, the portion of Old Atlanta Hwy south of Howard Hughes 
Road along the subject property will be entirely within the City of Newnan’s jurisdiction. 

2) Since the functional classification of Old Atlanta Highway is a “Local” road, the County Engineer 
recommends that the proposed subdivision’s primary entrance align with Mumford Drive and 
include full left-turn lanes in each direction to serve both subdivisions. Given the horizontal 
curvature of Old Atlanta Hwy, the proposed entrance on the inside of the curve at Howard 
Hughes Road would have limited sight distance. Howard Hughes Rd is also slightly skewed at its 
intersection with Old Atlanta Hwy, making the proposed entrance at this location less desirable 
for the County. If the developer and the City desire an entrance aligning with Howard Hughes 
Rd, then widening and geometric improvements would be necessary on each approach. 

3) Any improvements to the existing driveway off of US 29 proposed for “emergency vehicle 
access” will require approval by the Georgia D.O.T. 



  

4) The City of Newnan shall ensure that any impacts to U.S. and State jurisdictional waters on or 
along the subject property are properly permitted.  

5) Stormwater management should meet the requirements of the Metropolitan North Georgia 
Water Planning District.  

 
 
 
 

 
Cc: Michael Fouts, County Administrator 
 Jon Amason, Community Development Director  
 Jerry Ann Conner, County Attorney 
 City of Newnan – Tracy Dunnavant, City Planner 
 







































































City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
Date:    April 23, 2019  
 
Agenda Item:   11 Melson St., Newnan, Ga 30263 
 
Prepared and Presented by: 

Matt Murray, Code Enforcement Officer 
 
Submitted by:  Bill Stephenson, Chief Building Official 

 
 
 

Purpose:      To conduct a public hearing concerning the dilapidated structure located 
at 11 Melson St., Newnan, Ga 30263 

 
 
Background: Owner: Cassandra D. Richardson 
 
 Date Sub-Standard housing file was opened: October 2, 2014.  

Does the cost to bring this structure into compliance by means of repair 
exceed 50% of the structure’s assessed tax value? YES  
 
On November 28, 2018 the Building Department conducted an inspection 
of the premises. The structure has been determined to be unsafe as set 
forth by City Ordinance Section 5-24. (a), Sub-sections (3, 4, 5, 6, 8, 9, 
10). 

Options: 
1. Adopt a resolution directing the property owner to either repair or 

demolish the structure within forty five (45) days. 
2. Other direction from Council. 

 
 
Funding:       Not Applicable 
 
 
Recommendation:   Staff is requesting Council’s approval to proceed with Option 1. 
       
 
Previous Discussions with Council:            
 
February 20, 2019 – Council informed of conditions.    
 
March 11, 2019 – Public Hearing was requested. 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 

 
 

 



 

 

 

 

 

After recording please return to: 

Della Hill, City of Newnan 

25 LaGrange Street 

Newnan, GA 30263 
 

RESOLUTION 
 

IN RE:  Cassandra D. Richardson  Lien Holders: 

 11 Melson Street   Coweta County Tax Commissioner 

 Newnan, GA 30263   City of Newnan 

 Deed Book 4478 page 838  

      

      
   

 WHEREAS, the property of Cassandra D. Richardson located at 11 Melson Street, 
Newnan, Georgia 30263, in the City of Newnan was alleged by the Building Official of the 
City to be an unsafe building, as defined by an Ordinance adopted by the Mayor and 
Council on October 10, 1977; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, a hearing was set for the Mayor and Council to determine in accordance 
with the provisions of such Ordinance whether such building was in fact an unsafe building, 
as defined in such Ordinance and/or that the same was unsafe to the extent that it should be 
demolished or repaired; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of such hearing was given to the owner, lien holder and tenant, if 
any, as required by such Ordinance, and all other provisions of the Ordinance have been 
complied with; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, the Mayor and Council of the City of Newnan, after hearing 
evidence upon the question of whether such building is an unsafe building as defined by the 

Ordinance of the City of Newnan, do hereby determine that the building of Cassandra D. 

Richardson located at 11 Melson Street Newnan, Georgia 30263, should be repaired or 
demolished, and the owner thereof is given __________________________ (______) days 
within which to repair or demolish and remove the same; 
 
 RESOLVED FURTHER, that in the event the owner shall fail to repair or demolish 
and remove the same within the period of __________________________ (______) days herein 
fixed, the Building Official of the City of Newnan is hereby ordered to repair or demolish 
and remove the same, and to prepare an itemization of the cost of such repair or demolition 
and removal, and deliver such itemization to the Clerk of the City of Newnan, who is 
ordered to issue an execution against the owner for the total cost of such repair or demolition 
and removal, which execution shall constitute a lien against such real estate as of the date of 
this resolution - all in accordance with the Ordinances of the City of Newnan. 



 
 
 ADOPTED AND APPROVED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Newnan this 
___ day of _______________, 2019. 
 
 
ATTEST:     ___________________________________ 
      L. Keith Brady, Mayor 
_________________________________ 
Della Hill, City Clerk     
      ___________________________________ 
      Cynthia E. Jenkins, Mayor Pro-Tem 
REVIEWED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________________  ___________________________________ 
C. Bradford Sears, Jr., City Attorney  George M.  Alexander, Councilmember 
 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Cleatus Phillips, City Manager  Raymond F. DuBose, Councilmember 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Rhodes H. Shell, Councilmember 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Dustin Koritko, Councilmember 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Paul Guillaume, Councilmember 



IN RE:  Cassandra D. Richardson  Lien Holders: 

 11 Melson Street   Coweta County Tax Commissioner 

 Newnan, GA 30263   City of Newnan 

 Deed Book 4478 Page 838 
 
GEORGIA, COWETA COUNTY: 
` 
 
 The requirements of the resolution of the Mayor and Council of the City of Newnan 

adopted on the _____ day of _________________, 2019 and recorded in Deed Book ______, 

Page _______ of the Deed Records of Coweta County, Georgia relating to property located at  

11 Melson Street in the City of Newnan, Georgia having been complied with, the Clerk of 

Superior Court is authorized to enter this satisfaction thereof of record. 

 This ______ day of _____________________, 2019. 

 
 
      CITY OF NEWNAN 
 
      By:________________________________ 
         Building Official 
 
      Attest:_____________________________ 
         Clerk 
 
 
 
 
[SEAL] 
 
 

 
 



City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
Date:    April 23, 2019  
 
Agenda Item:   15 Elm Cir, Newnan, Ga 30263 
 
Prepared and Presented by: 

Matt Murray, Code Enforcement Officer 
 
Submitted by:  Bill Stephenson, Chief Building Official 

 
 
 

Purpose:      To conduct a public hearing concerning the dilapidated structure located 
at 15 Elm Cir, Newnan, Ga 30263 

 
 
Background: Owner: Mary Jean Payne Estate c/o Jeffrey Donald Payne Executor 
 
 Date Sub-Standard housing file was opened: July 12, 2018.   

Does the cost to bring this structure into compliance by means of repair 
exceed 50% of the structure’s assessed tax value? YES  
 
On November 28, 2018 the Building Department conducted an inspection 
of the premises. The structure has been determined to be unsafe as set 
forth by City Ordinance Section 5-24. (a), Sub-sections (3, 4, 5, 6, 8, 9, 
10). 

Options: 
1. Adopt a resolution directing the property owner to either repair or 

demolish the structure within forty five (45) days. 
2. Other direction from Council. 

 
 
Funding:       Not Applicable 
 
 
Recommendation:   Staff is requesting Council’s approval to proceed with Option 1. 
       
 
Previous Discussions with Council:            
 
February 20, 2019 – Council informed of conditions.    
 
March 11, 2019 – Public Hearing was requested. 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 



 



 

 

 

 

 

After recording please return to: 

Della Hill, City of Newnan 

25 LaGrange Street 

Newnan, GA 30263 
 

RESOLUTION 
 

IN RE: Mary Jean Avery Payne Estate  Lien Holders: 

c/o Jeffrey Donald Payne, Executor  Coweta County Tax Commissioner 

15 Elm Circle     City of Newnan 

Newnan, Georgia 30263 

Deed Book 322 page 290      
   

 WHEREAS, the property of Mary Jean Avery Payne Estate, c/o Jeffrey Donald 

Payne, Executor located at 15 Elm Circle, Newnan, Georgia 30263, in the City of Newnan 
was alleged by the Building Official of the City to be an unsafe building, as defined by an 
Ordinance adopted by the Mayor and Council on October 10, 1977; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, a hearing was set for the Mayor and Council to determine in accordance 
with the provisions of such Ordinance whether such building was in fact an unsafe building, 
as defined in such Ordinance and/or that the same was unsafe to the extent that it should be 
demolished or repaired; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of such hearing was given to the owner, lien holder and tenant, if 
any, as required by such Ordinance, and all other provisions of the Ordinance have been 
complied with; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, the Mayor and Council of the City of Newnan, after hearing 
evidence upon the question of whether such building is an unsafe building as defined by the 

Ordinance of the City of Newnan, do hereby determine that the building of Mary Jean 

Avery Payne Estate, c/o Jeffrey Donald Payne, Executor located at 15 Elm Circle, Newnan, 
Georgia 30263, should be repaired or demolished, and the owner thereof is given 
__________________________ (______) days within which to repair or demolish and remove 
the same; 
 
 RESOLVED FURTHER, that in the event the owner shall fail to repair or demolish 
and remove the same within the period of __________________________ (______) days herein 
fixed, the Building Official of the City of Newnan is hereby ordered to repair or demolish 
and remove the same, and to prepare an itemization of the cost of such repair or demolition 
and removal, and deliver such itemization to the Clerk of the City of Newnan, who is 
ordered to issue an execution against the owner for the total cost of such repair or demolition 
and removal, which execution shall constitute a lien against such real estate as of the date of 
this resolution - all in accordance with the Ordinances of the City of Newnan. 



 
 
 ADOPTED AND APPROVED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Newnan this 
___ day of _______________, 2019. 
 
 
ATTEST:     ___________________________________ 
      L. Keith Brady, Mayor 
_________________________________ 
Della Hill, City Clerk     
      ___________________________________ 
      Cynthia E. Jenkins, Mayor Pro-Tem 
REVIEWED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________________  ___________________________________ 
C. Bradford Sears, Jr., City Attorney  George M.  Alexander, Councilmember 
 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Cleatus Phillips, City Manager  Raymond F. DuBose, Councilmember 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Rhodes H. Shell, Councilmember 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Dustin Koritko, Councilmember 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Paul Guillaume, Councilmember 



IN RE: Mary Jean Avery Payne Estate  Lien Holders: 

c/o Jeffrey Donald Payne, Executor  Coweta County Tax Commissioner 

15 Elm Circle     City of Newnan 

Newnan, Georgia 30263 

Deed Book 322 page 290      
   

 
 
GEORGIA, COWETA COUNTY: 
` 
 
 The requirements of the resolution of the Mayor and Council of the City of Newnan 

adopted on the _____ day of _________________, 2019 and recorded in Deed Book ______, 

Page _______ of the Deed Records of Coweta County, Georgia relating to property located at  

15 Elm Circle in the City of Newnan, Georgia having been complied with, the Clerk of 

Superior Court is authorized to enter this satisfaction thereof of record. 

 This ______ day of _____________________, 2019. 

 
 
      CITY OF NEWNAN 
 
      By:________________________________ 
         Building Official 
 
      Attest:_____________________________ 
         Clerk 
 
 
 
 
[SEAL] 
 
 

 
 



 
City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
Date: 4/15/19 
 
 
Agenda Item:  Request to use Greenville Street Park – Foundations 

Christian Church – Middle and High School Summer 
Community Events 

 
 
Prepared by:  Adam Pollard/Katie Mosley 
  

 

Purpose:  Foundations Christian Church is requesting to use Greenville Street Park on June 2nd, 

June 9th, June 16th, and June 23rd from 5:00pm – 9:00pm for Middle and High School Summer 

Community Events.   

Background: We want to plan four summer community events that will be fun, safe and build 

the character of middle and high school students in Newnan. At these events there will be food, 

tailgate style yard games and a character-based lesson. All of which will take place under the 

supervision of volunteer adults. 

    
Funding: None  
 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with staff working on details with renter.  Staff has 

confirmed there are no conflicts with this request.   
  

 
Previous Discussion with Council:  N/A     
 



Motion to Enter into Executive Session 
 
I move that we now enter into closed session as allowed by O.C.G.A. §50-14-4 and 
pursuant to advice by the City Attorney, for the purpose of discussing  
 
 
And that we, in open session, adopt a resolution authorizing and directing the Mayor or 
presiding officer to execute an affidavit in compliance with O.C.G.A. §50-14-4, and that 
this body ratify the actions of the Council taken in closed session and confirm that the 
subject matters of the closed session were within exceptions permitted by the open 
meetings law. 
 
 

Motion to Adopt Resolution after Adjourning Back into Regular Session 
 
I move that we adopt the resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute the affidavit stating 
that the subject matter of the closed portion of the council meeting was within the 
exceptions provided by O.C.G.A. §50-14-4(b). 
 


	NEWNAN CITY COUNCIL MEETING APRIL 23, 2019
	READING OF THE MINUTES
	A-Minutes-Regular Council Meeting 4/9/19

	BOARDS & COMMISSIONS
	B-Resignation - Keep Newnan Beautiful

	SPECIAL RECOGNITION
	REPORTS-CITY MANAGER
	NEW BUSINESS
	C-Lease Agreement/Little Peoples Learning Center
	D-Intergovernmental Election Agreement 
	E-PSA City & PATH Foundation/LINC Segment C
	F-Info Only-Rezoning request on Ellis and Fair St
	G-Community Development Block Grant FY2020
	H-Discussion-Rezoning City owned lots
	I-Accept 9.66 acres from REO for future City Park

	UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	J-PH-Rezone 24.47+ acres from RU-7 to MXD
	 Ordinance to amend Zoning Map

	K-PH-Annex 30.78+ acres- N Hwy 29/Zone RS-15
	Ordinance to Annex 30.78+ acres 
	Ordinance to amend Zoning Map (RS-15)

	L-PH-11 Melson St- Repair or Demolish
	MPH-15 Elm Circle-Repair or Demolish

	VISITORS PETITIONS COMMUNICATIONS & COMPLAINTS
	N-Foundation-Request to use Gville St Park in June

	MOTION TO ENTER INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION
	ADJOURNMENT



